
NOTE: THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO REVISION UP TO 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING DATE AND TIME (NMSA 10-15-1 F). A COPY OF THE 
AGENDA MAY BE PICKED UP AT CITY HALL, 360 RIO COMMUNITIES BLVD, RIO COMMUNITIES, NM 87002. IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY 
WHO IS IN NEED OF A READER, AMPLIFIER, QUALIFIED SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETER OR ANY OTHER FORM OF AUXILIARY AND OR SERVICE TO ATTEND OR 
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT THE MUNICIPAL CLERK AT 505-861-6803 AT LEAST ONE WEEK PRIOR TO THE MEETING OR AS SOON AS 
POSSIBLE. 

 

City of Rio Communities Council Regular Business Meeting 
City Council Chambers - 360 Rio Communities Blvd 

Rio Communities, NM 87002 
Monday, December 09, 2024 6:00 PM 

Agenda 
Please silence all electronic devices. 

Mayor - Joshua Ramsell 
Mayor Pro Tem - Lawrence R. Gordon  

Council - Arthur Apodaca, Thomas Nelson, Matthew Marquez 
Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call 
Approval of Agenda 
Approval of Consent Agenda  

1. Approval of Minutes Workshop Minutes September 16, 2024, Workshop Minutes October 7, 
2024, Regular Business Meeting October 7, 2024, Regular Business Meeting November 12, 2024, 
Special Business Meeting November 21, 2024 

2. Approval of Accounts Payable 
3. Swearing in of Finance Officer Roy Hubbard  

Public Comment: The Council will take public comments in written format. These should be emailed to 
admin@riocommunities.net through 4:45 PM on Monday, December 09, 2024. These comments will be distributed to 
all Councilors for review. If you wish to speak during the public comment session, the Council will allow each member 
of the public to three (3) minutes to address the Council.  Both the public and Council will follow rules of 
decorum.  Give your name and where you live.  The public will direct comments to the City Council.  Comment(s) will 
not be disruptive or derogatory. 

The Council will not take action or engage in discussion regarding the comments made or received, but when 
appropriate the matters raised may be referred to staff or others for further review. Both the public and Council will 
follow rules of decorum. Derogatory comments or matters under litigation will not be allowed and any person or 
persons addressing the Council are liable for their own statements, not the Council. Statements are limited to a 
maximum of 3 minutes duration. Please give your name and where you live for the record. 

Manager Report 

a) Update on Bypass Road  

Action Items 
4. Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Resolution 2024-13 Adopting an Infrastructure Capital 

Improvement Plan (ICIP)  
5. Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Resolution 2024-14 Official Holidays for 2025  
6.     Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Adding Finace Officer Roy Hubbard as Signor on all 

City Bank Accounts  
7.    Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Contract Amendments for NM Local Government Law  
8.    Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Appointment of Michael Melendez for Planning & 

Zoning Commission  
9.   Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Resolution 2024-15 Declaring 303 Horner as a 

Dangerous / Nuisance Property 

Council Discussion 

Executive Session - For the purpose of Regarding the Fire Chief Evaluation pursuant to NMSA 10-15-
1(H)(2) - Limited Personnel Matters  

* Motion and roll call vote to go into closed session 

* Motion and roll call vote to go back into the regular business meeting session 

* Welcome everyone back and statement by the Mayor: 

Adjourn 

Please  join us from the comfort and safety of your own home by entering the following link: @ 
https://www.facebook.com/riocommunities 

 



 

Council Special Workshop Minutes September 16, 2024 Page 1 of 3 

 

City of Rio Communities Council Special Workshop 
City Council Chambers - 360 Rio Communities Blvd 

Rio Communities, NM 87002 
Monday, September 16, 2024 3:00 PM 

Minutes 
Please silence all electronic devices. 

Call to Order 

Mayor Ramsell called the meeting to order at 3:06pm. 

Attendees 
Governing Body                                                 Staff    
Mayor Joshua Ramsell                                                Manager Dr. Martin Moore    
Councilor Lawrence Gordon                                         Deputy Clerk Lalena Aragon   
Councilor Thomas Nelson                                             Police Chief Felix Nunez   
Councilor Art Apodaca                                                  City Attorney Randy Van Vleck 
Councilor Matthew Marquez         

Public Comment:  

No public comments  

Discussion/Agenda Items 

Revenue Planning  

City Manger Dr. Moore went over a revenue plan and discussed the need for employees in the Fire 
Department, Police Department and Public Works Department. 

Police Chief Nunez talked about his need for officers and his plan to have a swing shift schedule.  

City Manager Dr. Moore continued to go over his presentation and explained that the Fire Chief has a 
schedule he is recommending.  

Fire Chief Tabet explained the 48-hour a, b shift he is looking to go to. He explained that this is a 
schedule that most fire departments are going to.  

City Manager Dr. Moore explained how fire departments’ overtime is calculated.  

Police Chief Nunez explained how the Police Departments over time is calculated and stated that the 
City also has to be competitive with sister municipalities as far as salaries.  

Councilor Marquez asked why Public Works needs two employees.  

City Manager Dr. Moore explained with parks coming in, weeds and building matinees and OSA 
guidelines require 2 individuals out on the field at all times.   

City Manager Dr. Moore continued to go over the revenue plan and explained that the increase in 
gross receipt tax may be increasing due to new business that may come into the city and explained 
other ways that can bring up gross receipt taxes. He then continued with going over Property Taxes.   

Councilor Nelson suggested putting all cannabis revenue to law enforcement. He also talked about 
lodgers’ tax and stated that tiny homes can be a part of lodger’s tax. He then stated that there could be 
a public safety bond.  



 

Council Special Workshop Minutes September 16, 2024 Page 2 of 3 

Mayor Ramsell explained that those bonds are usually used for infrastructure and stated that the City 
would have to increase property taxes to offset the bond because you have to have a designated 
amount of revenue to pay for it. 

There was a discussion.   

Mayor Ramsell explained as the City grows the residents are going to want more services likes roads 
repairs, full time police and EMS services and the City is all for that at the same time if property taxes 
haven’t increased in over 10 years and we keep increasing operations and expanding services at a 
certain point if you look at what the City does 84-86 percent is done with non-Rio Communities tax 
payers without raising property taxes the City will not be able to provide residents with the services 
they want and need.  

City Manager Dr. Moore explained that gross receipt taxes are the main type of revenue in the general 
fund.  

The Council continued the discussion. 

City Manager Dr. Moore explained the need for a couple more Public Works employees. 

Councilor Marquez asked why public works needs other employe.   

Public Works Supervisor Andy Quintana explained right now public works has two full time employees 
and one temp employee. there is a lot of work that needs to be done in the field, safety issues and 
there is also paperwork involved. He explained that one person can’t be out on the field alone and for 
safety reasons. He explained for the City to get all the roads done and the trash, weeds ect.  

There was discussion. 

Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP) 

City Manager Dr. Moore went over the the ICIP and asked for the Councils most important topics and 
stated residents are looking for parks, streetlights, public safety.  

There was discussion  

 Fire Chief Tabet explained that Public Safety equipment is one that should be looked at and explained   
that the fire department is looking to replace the engine apparatus, and the Police Department will 
need additional units. He then continued to explain the needs for replacing the fire engine apparatus.  

Councilor Marquez asked what will happen to the existing engine.  

Fire Chief Tabet explained that it’s met its life span and no longer meets FDA standers. The City could 
donate it or keep it for a museum.  

Councilor Gordon suggested asking for a million dollars so both the fire and police department will 
have enough money for the equipment they need. 

The discussion continued  

Chief Nunez explained that each legislator gets an certain amount of money and they also support 
Police and Fire and gave an example of his plan and he isn't trying to put the City in debt he explained 
that.  

Dr. Moore stated that he has Public Safety as number 1, Steet lights #2 Storm water drainage #3 Parks 
& Trails #4 Public Works Heavy equipment #5.  



 

Council Special Workshop Minutes September 16, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

Veterans Memorial 

City Manager Dr. Moore suggested not having it too early in the morning and not too late in the 
afternoon.  

There was discussion  

Councilor Apodaca talked about contacting Judge Chavez as a speaker.  

Councilor Marquez will reach out to the Armory.   

The Council discussed working with the High School for the ROTC and singing the National Anthem and 
discussed other speakers.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
  
_________________________________________  
Dr. Martin Moore, (Acting)Municipal Clerk 
(Taken and Transcribed by Lalena Aragon, Deputy Clerk) 

 

  

Date: ____________________________________  

     

 
 

Approved: 
 

 
_________________________________________ 

Joshua Ramsell, 
Mayor 

 
 
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Lawrence R. Gordon, 
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor 

Arthur Apodaca, 
Councilor 

  
  
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Thomas Nelson, 
Councilor 

Matthew Marquez, 
Councilor 

 

 



 

Council Special Workshop Minutes October 07, 2024 Page 1 of 3 

 

City of Rio Communities Council Special Workshop 
City Council Chambers - 360 Rio Communities Blvd 

Rio Communities, NM 87002 
Monday, October 07, 2024 3:00 PM 

Minutes 
Please silence all electronic devices. 

Call to Order: Mayor Ramsell 3:07 

Attendees 
Governing Body                                                 Staff    
Mayor Joshua Ramsell                                                Manager Dr. Martin Moore    
Councilor Lawrence Gordon                                         Deputy Clerk Lalena Aragon   
Councilor Thomas Nelson                                             Deputy Clerk Rachael Howe 
Councilor Art Apodaca                                                  City Attorney Randy Van Vleck 
Councilor Matthew Marquez                                       Police Chief Felix Nunez   

Public Comment: 

 Dick Irvine Westen Drive Taked about the Veteran's Memorial. He gave the council a handout of what 
the City of Belen is doing. 

General Fund Revenue 

City Manager Dr. Moore gave a review of the budget fiscal year 2024-2025. He went over budget 
expenses for Fiscal Year 2026 - 2030. He explained Property Taxes and property Tax Revenue at a 2.75 
Mils. Dr. Moore stated that he has talked with the Police and the Fre Chief about taking a look at using 
a grow fund which provide funds that help out with salaries for Fire and Police.  

Councilor Marquez stated If the City raises taxes, the community needs to vote on it. He also stated he 
thinks the jump to 2.75% is too high.  

City Manager Dr. Moore explained the projection is a revenue source. 

Councilor Marquez stated the City could use Maverick's projections for Public Safety.  

City Manager Dr. Moore stated that it's recommended that those funds go to public safety, Police and 
Fire. 

Councilor Marquez believes the City needs to calculate the needs of employees that the City has and 
will need.  

There was a discussion. 

Councilor Apodaca stated the residents want this or that, but the residents are also stating they want 
Fire and Police and future employees to service them. He stated they needed to look at both sides. 

Councilor Marquez stated the jump in taxes is too high. He believes the City needs to start off small. 

Councilor Apodaca stated the last time the City did a Mil levy raise they made it significant enough, so 
they don't have to come back every year.  

Councilor Marquez stated he believes the council and city does need to revisit this every year.  

Councilor Apodaca stated this is a challenge for everyone. 



 

Council Special Workshop Minutes October 07, 2024 Page 2 of 3 

Councilor Nelson stated going to the max the first year is extreme and maybe it should be a step-up 
year by year to the max.  

Mayor Ramsell stated the length in time it takes to get that money and explained it is not an 
immediate turn around. He then explained where most of the money comes from and stated they are 
not from citizen tax money. 

City Manager Dr. Moore stated it would cost the City $600 thousand to hold onto the positions in the 
Fire and Police Departments.  

Mayor Ramsell asked what exactly the dollar amount will be for those two departments. 

City Manager Dr. Moore stated that they are looking at 1.2 million dollars a year for the two safety 
departments to be fully staffed based on a five-year projection. 

There was a discussion 

Councilor Gordon stated they have to decide how much is too much for them to be able to leave the 
public alone for a while. 

Mayor Ramsell stated there hasn't been a tax increase since 2015.  

Councilor Gordon states the City can't live on grants. 

 Councilor Nelson asks for a conservative number of what is absolutely needed before the next 
meeting. 

City Manager Dr. Moore stated that we have Maverick coming in that will bring in some revenue and 
there will be some others in the future.  

Police Chief Nunez stated that he had 337 calls of service in July. He started as a person in the field 
working and gave the example of a crime that had just taken place, he then asked how he is supposed 
to ask one officer to take 16 calls a day. Chief Nunez stated that they need to get more officers out on 
the street. Chief Nunez stated that they have to look at the reality of the issues in the City.  

Councilor Marquez stated he also has to look at the revenue and what they can afford. How many 
people does the Police Department need, probably 20 people. He feels that if the City pushes this tax 
increase that people will start to move out of the City and there will be more vacant houses for 
criminals to break into. 

Mayor Ramsell stated 8% of cannabis sells is medicinal and those sales are non-taxable. the only 
taxable sales are recreationally.  

There was a discussion. 

Fire Chief Tabet stated the staffing module will work for them for 3 to 5 years. After that they will have 
to increase staffing. He explained the module they have is the National Standard and the AMR 
situation is becoming a disaster and that is not just for Rio Communities it is happening across the 
board. Chief Tabet spoke about job security and wanting to have people that will be able to retire from 
here and he can't give them that assurance. 

City Manager Dr. Moore suggest the council step back and look at 2021 when there were only 6 staff 
members and understand how far they've come and then decide where they will grow to get where 
they need to be next. 
 



 

Council Special Workshop Minutes October 07, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

Veterans Day Celebration  

Councilor Apodaca stated he will talk to the American Legion to see if they can come. He also stated 
that it's important to understand that it's the City's first Veterans day event and not a competition with 
Belen.  

There was a discussion.  

Police Department/Fire Department Change To a 14 Day Work Period 

City Manager Dr. Moore stated I will let the City attorney discuss the work period. 

City Attorney Randy Van Fleck explained the policy and what needs to change. He explained the 
changes to section 8 and section 10and stated this will allow the departments to have flexibility and 
pay premium time. 

Fire Chief Tabet stated this will allow for coverage and reduce burnout of his crew. He stated he feels 
it's crucial for the city based off the amount of calls they are getting. 

Police Chief Nunez stated the police department schedule will be slightly different and they will be 
monitoring the overtime closely.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
  
_________________________________________  
Dr. Martin Moore, (Acting) Municipal Clerk 
(Taken and Transcribed by Lalena Aragon, Deputy Clerk) 

 

  

Date: ____________________________________  

  

 
 

Approved: 
 

 
_________________________________________ 

Joshua Ramsell, 
Mayor 

 
 
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Lawrence R. Gordon, 
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor 

Arthur Apodaca, 
Councilor 

  
  
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Thomas Nelson, 
Councilor 

Matthew Marquez, 
Councilor 

 

 



 

Council Special Business Meeting Minutes October 07, 2024 Page 1 of 3 

 

City of Rio Communities Council Special Business Meeting 
City Council Chambers - 360 Rio Communities Blvd 

Rio Communities, NM 87002 
Monday, October 07, 2024 6:00 PM 

Minutes 
Please silence all electronic devices. 

Mayor - Joshua Ramsell 
Mayor Pro Tem - Lawrence R. Gordon 

Council - Arthur Apodaca, Thomas Nelson, Matthew Marquez  

Call to Order 

Mayor Ramsell called the meeting to order at  

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call  
Governing Body                                                 Staff    
 Mayor Joshua Ramsell                                                 Manager Dr. Martin Moore    
 Councilor Lawrence Gordon                                Deputy Clerk Lalena Aragon   
 Councilor Thomas Nelson                                             Deputy Clerk Rachael Howe 
 Councilor Art Apodaca                                                  Police Chief Felix Nunez 
 Councilor Matthew Marquez                                      City Attorney Randy Van Vleck 
 
  Approval of Agenda 

 Councilor Nelson made a motion to amend the executive session and add it to the regular meeting.   
Seconded by Councilor Marquez. 
 
Voting Yea:                                                                                                                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Gordon 
Councilor Marquez 
Councilor Nelson                                                            Motion passed with a 4-0 vote  

Councilor Nelson made a motion to approve the agenda as amended. Seconded by Councilor Marquez 
 
Voting Yea:                                                                                                                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Gordon 
Councilor Marquez 
Councilor Nelson                                                            Motion passed with a 4-0 vote  

Public Comments 

Geroge Torres Chico Place: he stated he has lived there for a long time. He talked about the lack of 
street maintenance and the City not taking immediate action regarding the safety of roads in the Del 
Fuego area. He explained the South side of Del Fuego is getting flooded. He stated he has been working 
with the Public Works Supervisor and he is going to get the issue on Chico place fixed and asked why 
has there been such a delay in getting this done.  



 

Council Special Business Meeting Minutes October 07, 2024 Page 2 of 3 

Dick Irvin Western Drive. Stated he has some questions on the bypass road and wants to know how the 
City knows the trucks won’t be carrying hazardous materials and will it affect the housing in the area 
and the impact. He asked who is paying for the construction of the bypass road and who is responsible 
for maintaining the road. He asked where the bypass road is going.  

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision - Purchase of Pickup Truck using Capital Appropriation Grant 
Agreement 24-1 3201 Public Works Equipment and Heavy Equipment. 

Andy Quintana Public Works Supervisor stated that one of the City's work trucks is old and breaking 
down and he is requesting to purchase a new truck.  

Councilor Nelson asked why he wants a half ton.  

Mr. Quintana stated it is smaller and will use less fuel and will be better to use around the City.  

Councilor Nelson stated that he believes a bigger truck is better.  

Councilor Marquez asked how much oil it burns and what else is wrong with the truck. 

Mr. Quintana stated several things and explained the truck was donated and it is old.  

Councilor Gordon asked what they would use the truck for. 

Mr. Quintana explained it will be used to spray weeds, towing, and other things around the City. 

Councilor Apodaca stated he trusts the Public Works Supervisor and what he needs as a department 
head. 

Councilor Marquez asked the difference between a half ton and a quarter ton.  

Mr. Quintana stated it would be about a $20 K difference.  

Motion made by Councilor Gordon to approve the purchase of a pickup truck using Capital 
Appropriation Grant Agreement 24-1 3201 Public Works Equipment and Heavy Equipment. Seconded 
by Councilor Apodaca. 
 
Voting Yea:                                       Voting Nay:                                                                                    
Councilor Apodaca                       Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Gordon 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 3-1 vote 

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision - Memorandum of Understanding Between the County of 
Valencia and the City of Rio Communities to Provide GIS Addressing and GIS E-911 Services for City of 
Rio Communities. 

City Manager Dr. Moore explained the agreement from the County for the GIS E-911 addressing.  

Councilor Nelson made a motion to approve memorandum of understanding between the County of 
Valencia and the City of Rio Communities to provide GIS addressing and GIS E-911 services for City of 
Rio Communities. Seconded by Councilor Gordon. 
Voting Yea:                                                                                                                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Gordon 
Councilor Marquez 
Councilor Nelson                                                            Motion passed with a 4-0 vote  



 

Council Special Business Meeting Minutes October 07, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

Discussion regarding a Truck Byway 

City Manager Dr. Moore explained where the byway will be. He stated the City is expecting the designs 
within a week to a week and a half for the council to review. He explained the road will not be adjacent 
to any residential housing and the connections where the trucks come onto those roads will be built to 
with stand 2 tons trucks. He stated plans have gone through 3 different engineers for review and once 
he gets the documents he will provide them to Council.  

Councilor Nelson asked if there would be streetlights on this road. 

City Manage Dr. Moore stated he didn't think so and he would bring it to the design team. 

Mayor Ramsell stated he would like to see a stoplight.  

There was a discussion. 

Adjourn:  

Motion made by Councilor Gordon to adjourn. Seconded by Councilor Nelson. Motion carried at 
6:43pm. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
  
_________________________________________  
Dr. Martin Moore, (acting) Municipal Clerk 
(Taken and Transcribed by Lalena Aragon, Deputy Clerk) 

 

  

Date: ____________________________________  

  

Approved: 
 

_________________________________________ 
Joshua Ramsell, 

Mayor 
 
 
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Lawrence R. Gordon, 
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor 

Arthur Apodaca, 
Councilor 

  
  
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Thomas Nelson, 
Councilor 

Matthew Marquez, 
Councilor 

 

 



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes November 12, 2024 Page 1 of 4 

 

City of Rio Communities Council Regular Business Meeting 
City Council Chambers - 360 Rio Communities Blvd 

Rio Communities, NM 87002 
Tuesday, November 12, 2024 6:00 PM 

Minutes 
Please silence all electronic devices. 

Mayor - Joshua Ramsell 
Mayor Pro Tem - Lawrence R. Gordon 

Council - Arthur Apodaca, Thomas Nelson, Matthew Marquez  

Call to Order 

Mayor Ramsell called the meeting to order at 6:03pm. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Councilor Nelson led the Pledge of Allegiance  

Roll Call 
Governing Body                                                 Staff    
Mayor Joshua Ramsell                                                Manager Dr. Martin Moore    
Councilor Lawrence Gordon                                   Deputy Clerk Lalena Aragon   
Councilor Thomas Nelson                                             Police Chief Felix Nunez   
Councilor Art Apodaca                                                  City Attorney Randy Van Vleck 
Councilor Matthew Marquez         

Approval of Agenda 

Mayor Ramsell requested to amend the agenda and take action item number 4 off the agenda.  

Motion made by Councilor Nelson to approve the amendments on the agenda. Seconded by Councilor 
Gordon. 
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote. 

Approval of Consent Agenda  

Approval of Minutes – Regular Business Meeting September 9,2024, Special Business Meeting 
September 16, 2024, Regular Business Meeting September 23,2024, Regular Business Meeting 
October 15, 2024, October 21, 2024 (Workshop), Regular Business Meeting October 28, 2024 

Approval of Accounts Payable 

Swearing in of Officer Mendoza, Code Enforcer Damian Flynn, Librarian Amanda Carrasco, Court 
Clerk Derek Ross, Deputy Clerk Rachael Howe   

 

 

 



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes November 12, 2024 Page 2 of 4 

Motion made by Councilor Gordon to approve the Consent agenda. Seconded by Councilor Apodaca. 
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote. 

 Chief Nunez introduced Stephanie Baca as Administrative Assistant, Code Enforcer Damian Flynn and   
Officer Mendoza. 

City Manager Dr. Moore introduced Deputy Clerk Rachael Howe and Librarian Amanda Carrasco.  

City Manager Dr. Moore swore in Administrative Assistant Stephanie Baca, Code Enforcer Damian 
Flynn, Officer Mendoza, Deputy Clerk Rachael Howe and Librarian Amanda Carrasco. 

Public Comment:  

No public comment 

Manager Report 

City Manager Dr. Moore explained that City Employees worked hard early in the morning during the 
snowstorm and talked about the power outage around the City. He explained that PNM had good 
communication with the City during the power outage. He then explained that the ICIP, Capital Outlay, 
is ready and requested a Special Meeting. Dr. Moore talked about possibly discussing the bypass road 
as well. He stated they are working on the agreement for the bypass road and the City is working with 
Arcosa. City Manager Dr. Moore explained that they are working with LEDA on the procurement of the 
road.  

Mayor Ramsell suggested having a Special Meeting Thursday November 21, 2024, at 6:00pm and 
canceling the November 25th meeting.   

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – 2024-2025 Contract Amendment Request for NM Local 
Government Law 

Action item removed.  

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision – Resolution 2024- 12 Cooperative Agreement for Project 
Control Number LP30054  

City Manager Dr. Moore explained that in September there was a resoulution brough to you with a 
match waiver he explained that the City was not granted the grant waiver, and the City has the Money 
to cover the 5% that is requested. Dr. Moore explained that if the cost exceeds the total cost, then the 
city is responsible for that cost. 

Councilor Gordon made a motion to approve Resolution 2024-12 Cooperative Agreement for Project 
Control Number LP30054. Seconded by Councilor Apodaca.  
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote. 



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes November 12, 2024 Page 3 of 4 

 

Council Discussion 

Councilor Marquez talked about the winter storm and suggested that the city use the RC assist, and he 
did not see anything on RC assist.  

City Manager Dr. Moore explained that City staff is not trained on that part of RC assist.  

Councilor Marquez thanked Star Bucks and everyone that attended and showed up to the Veternas 
Day event, he suggested that the City sends thank you letters to all who were involved in this event.  

Councilor Gordon thanked all the Council for all they did to make the Veterans Day event happen.  

Councilor Nelson talked about the beautification grant is looking at having a Mesa clean up in the 
Spring. He thanked everyone for helping with the Veterans Day event.  

Councilor Apodaca stated that there is a groundbreaking for the new hospital on November 20, 2024, 
at 2:00pm and gave an address of 200 Sand Sage Rd. NW Los Lunas NM. He then asked Dr. Moore for 
the last contact with the State representative on the zip code request and he would like to follow up 
and write a letter to get that moving forward.  

Ther was a discussion. 

Councilor Apodaca stated he wanted to get with the Fire Chief about getting pictures of Council and 
previous Council Members.  

City Manager Dr. Moore recommended having pictures taken on November 21 at 4:30 before the City 
Council Meeting.  

Mayor Ramsell explaiend that RC assist will only work if residents have the app downloaded, he 
explained that other Municipalities have another system that sends out text messages.  

Marquez stated that they had talked about the fire department pushing the notifications out. 

Adjourn 

Motion made by Councilor Apodaca to adjourn. Seconded by Councilor Gordon. Motion carried at 
6:45pm. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
  
_________________________________________  
Dr. Martin Moore, (Acting) Municipal Clerk 
(Taken and Transcribed by Lalena Aragon, Deputy Clerk) 

 

  

Date: ____________________________________  

  

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

Council Regular Business Meeting Minutes November 12, 2024 Page 4 of 4 

Approved: 
 

 
_________________________________________ 

Joshua Ramsell, 
Mayor 

 
 
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Lawrence R. Gordon, 
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor 

Arthur Apodaca, 
Councilor 

  
  
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Thomas Nelson, 
Councilor 

Matthew Marquez, 
Councilor 

 

 



 

Council Special Business Meeting Minutes November 21, 2024 Page 1 of 3 

 

City of Rio Communities Council Special Business Meeting 
City Council Chambers - 360 Rio Communities Blvd 

Rio Communities, NM 87002 
Thursday, November 21, 2024 6:00 PM 

Minutes 
Please silence all electronic devices. 

Mayor - Joshua Ramsell 
Mayor Pro Tem - Lawrence R. Gordon  

Council - Arthur Apodaca, Thomas Nelson, Matthew Marquez 

Call to Order 

Mayor Ramsell called the meeting to order at 6:01pm. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Councilor Marquez led the pledge of allegiance  

Roll Call 

Governing Body                                                 Staff    
Mayor Joshua Ramsell                                    Manager Dr. Martin Moore    
Councilor Lawrence Gordon                                  Deputy Clerk Lalena Aragon                                 
Councilor Thomas Nelson                                           Police Chief Felix Nunez   
Councilor Art Apodaca                                                 
Councilor Matthew Marquez         

Approval of Agenda 

Councilor Gordon made a motion to approve the agenda. Seconded by Councilor Apodaca.  
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote  

Public Comment: 

No public comments  

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision - Amendments to the ICIP Infrastructure Capital 
Improvement Plan FY 2026-2030 

City manager Dr. Moore explained that they went over the changes that the Council talked about in 
previous meetings and explained the outline of the ICP.  

Motion made by Councilor Nelson to approve the amendments to the ICIP Infrastructure Capital 
Improvement plan FY 2026-2030.  Seconded by Councilor Gordon.  
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote  



 

Council Special Business Meeting Minutes November 21, 2024 Page 2 of 3 

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision - Capital Appropriation Submittals    

City Manager Dr. Moore explained the Capital request and went over the request and stated that they 
are recommending 750k for streetlights, 870k for public safety and 750k for public works land. He 
explained that this is a lot larger of amount then what the City has asked for in previous years. He 
suggested that the City have a nuisance property cleaned up and show the Governor that we are using 
the money. 

Mayor Ramsell asked if the $250k would be for nuisance property.  

City Manager Dr. Moore stated it is to clean up nucinces like abandoned buildings where the homeless 
are camping out.  

There was a discussion.  

Motion made by Councilor Gordon to approve the Capital Appropriation Submittals with adding 
$250,000 in community clean up and $250,000 for housing. Seconded by Councilor Marquez. 
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote  

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision - Other Legislative (Non-Capital Request) 

City Manager Dr. Moore explained that they call it a junior bill and explained this is going to help us 
focus on our public safety and public works. He talked about the new hires in the City and the step-
down grants the City is utilizing and stated that this is money that can help supplement that.  

Motion made by Councilor Apodaca to approve Other Legislative (Non-Capital Request). Seconded by 
Councilor Nelson.  
 
Voting Yea:                                     
Councilor Gordon                          
Councilor Apodaca                        
Councilor Nelson 
Councilor Marquez     Motion passed with a 4-0 vote  

Council Discussion  

Police Chief Nunez stated that he has been running into someone in the Community. He is green and 
known as the Grinch who has been mischievous. He stated the City is having a Christmas event on 
December 7, 2024, he explained that theme is to catch the Grinch and there will be door prizes, food 
and lots of fun. He also stated they will be showing the Grinch movie. He explained that there will be 
videos on the City’s Facebook for the Children to watch to help catch the Grinch and invited the public 
and the Council to come.   

Councilor Marquez stated he didn’t have anything at this time.  

Councilor Gordon attended the groundbreaking for the hospital, and he is glad to see the County 
moving forward.  

Councilor Nelson requested to put 303 Horner on our next agenda to address as a nuisance           
property.  



 

Council Special Business Meeting Minutes November 21, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

Councilor Apodaca stated that last week he attended the AREA regional Boards banquet and met some 
great contacts.  

Councilor Marquez talked about the trucks from Arcosa driving over a piece of the median and asked 
when they will be fixing it.  

City Manager Dr. Moore stated that the City did request those repairs and i will have more anserws 
after the meeting tomorrow.  

Councilor Marquez asked about Christmas Light and the Christmas tree.  

City Manager stated they will go up as soon as possible.  

Mayor Ramsell requested to have a decoration day with the community and have them contribute to 
the decoration of the tree.  

There was a discussion.  

Mayor Ramsell wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.  
Adjourn 
Motion made by Councilor Nelson to adjourn. Seconded by Councilor Gordon. Motion carried at 
6:34pm. 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
_________________________________________ 

 

Dr. Martin Moore, (Acting) Municipal Clerk 
(Taken and Transcribed by Lalena Aragon, Deputy Clerk) 

 

  

Date: ____________________________________  

  

Approved: 
 

 
_________________________________________ 

Joshua Ramsell, 
Mayor 

 
 
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Lawrence R. Gordon, 
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor 

Arthur Apodaca, 
Councilor 

  
  
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Thomas Nelson, 
Councilor 

Matthew Marquez, 
Councilor 

 

 

































CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES, NM 
County of Valencia 
RESOLUTION 2024 - 13 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (ICIP) 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Rio Communities, NM recognizes that the financing of public capital projects has 
  become a major concern in New Mexico and nationally; and 
 
WHEREAS, in times of scarce resources, it is necessary to find new financing mechanisms and maximize the 
  use of existing resources; and 
 
WHEREAS, systematic capital improvement planning is an effective tool for communities to define their 
  development needs, establish priorities and pursue concrete actions and strategies to achieve  
  necessary project development; and 
 
WHEREAS, this process contributes to local and regional efforts in project identification and  selection in 
  short and long range capital planning efforts. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES, NM that: 
 
1. The City of Rio Communities, NM has adopted the 2026-2030 Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan, 
 and 
2. It is intended that the Plan be a working document and is the first of many steps toward  improving 
 rational, long-range capital planning and budgeting for New Mexico’s infrastructure. 
3.  This Resolution supersedes Resolution No. 2023-19. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF DECEMBER 2024 BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF RIO COMMUNITIES, NEW MEXICO. 
        

City of Rio Communities Governing Body 
 

_____________________________________ 
Joshua Ramsell, 

     Mayor 
 
____________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Lawrence Gordon,    Arthur Apodaca, 
Councilor Mayor Pro-tem   Councilor 
 
 
____________________________________               _______________________________________ 
Thomas Nelson,    Matthew Marquez,   
Councilor   Councilor 
 
ATTEST: 
  
_______________________________ 
Dr. Martin Moore, (Acting) Municipal Clerk   



STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES 

RESOLUTION 2024 - 14 
 

Official Holidays 
      
 
WHEREAS,  The Governing Body in and for the City of Rio Communities, State of New Mexico is duly 

authorized; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Governing Body has adopted in the Personnel Policy Manual Resolution 2023-15 Personnel 

Policy Manual Section 9.2. That all full-time and qualified part-time employees of the City are 
eligible for legal holidays as adopted annually by resolution.  

 
WHEREAS, The attached Addendum A are the official Federal Holidays as approved by the United States 

Government. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the governing body of the City of Rio Communities, State of 

New Mexico, hereby approves the official Federal Holidays for the 2025 year. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF DECEMBER 2024 BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF RIO COMMUNITIES, NEW MEXICO. 
        

City of Rio Communities Governing Body 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
Joshua Ramsell, 

Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Lawrence Gordon,  Arthur Apodaca, 
Mayor Pro-tem Councilor 
 
 
 
____________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Thomas Nelson,  Matthew Marquez,   
Councilor Councilor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
  
_______________________________ 
Dr. Martin Moore, 
(Acting) Municipal Clerk 



                                                                                                                      
CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES 

360 Rio Communities Blvd 
Rio Communities, NM 87002 

505-861-6803 
www.riocommunities.net                                            

 
 

2025 OFFICIAL HOLIDAYS  
 
 

New Year’s Day Wednesday, January 1st 
   
 
Martin Luther King. Jr. Birthday Monday, January 20th  
 
 
President’s Day Monday, February 17th 
 
 
Memorial Day Monday, May 26th 
 
 
Juneteenth  Thursday June 19th 
       
 
Independence Day (Observed) Monday, July 7th 
 
 
Labor Day Monday, September 1st 
 
 
Indigenous Peoples’ Day Monday, October 13th 
 
 
Veterans’ Day  Tuesday, November 11th 
  
 
Thanksgiving Day Thursday, November 27th 
 
 
Christmas Day Thursday, December 25th 
 



1  

 

AMENDMENT TO LEGAL        SERVICES                      CONTRACT 

THIS AMENDMENT is made and entered into by and between the City of Rio 
Communities, hereinafter referred to as the "City" and NM Local Government Law, LLC. 
hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor", and is effective as of the date set forth below 
upon which it is executed by the City Council. 

 
A. Purpose of the Amendment.  The purpose of the Amendment is to change the rates, fees and 

expenses section of the existing Contract. 
 
B. Changes to the Contract.    

 
1. The existing contract contains an Exhibit A fixing the rates, fees and expenses under the 
Contract.   That attached appendix is hereby repealed. 
 
2. Section 2 of the Contract is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
A. The City shall pay to the Contractor in full payment for services 
satisfactorily performed, in an amount not to exceed $80,000.00 per 
contract year, plus the applicable New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax and 
expenses. The Contractor shall bill the City on an hourly basis as set forth 
below on a monthly basis in an amount estimated to be $6,666.66. 

 
B. Rates, Fees and Expenses 

 Senior Attorney Hourly Rates: $180.00 
 Junior Attorney Hourly Rates: $140.00 
 Paralegal Hourly Rates:  $70.00 
 Travel Fee:    ½ of the applicable hourly rate 
 Expenses: Actual; costs of meals, lodging and all other 

incidental expenses such as copying, and filing fees. 
 

If the City requires legal work that the Contractor estimates will be in excess 
of the monthly estimated hours, the Contractor shall notify the Manager 
and the parties shall agree on whether the work is necessary to be engaged 
in, in that month. If the Contractor and City agree, through the course of a year, 
that the annual contract amount for legal services is too low to cover the 
amount of necessary legal services, the City may ask the City Council for a budget 



2  

adjustment. In no event will the Contractor he paid any amount in excess of 
the specified total amount payable without this Agreement being amended in 
writing. 

 
C. Payment is subject to availability of funds pursuant to the Appropriations 
Paragraph set forth below and to any negotiations between the parties from year to 
year pursuant to Paragraph I, Scope of Work. All invoices MUST BE received by 
the City no later than fifteen (15) days after the termination of the Fiscal Year in 
which the services were delivered. Invoices received after such date WILL NOT 
BE PAID. 

 
D. Contractor must submit a detailed statement accounting for all services 
performed, specified on a minimum of a quarter hour basis, and expenses incurred. 
If the City finds that the services are not acceptable, within thirty days after the 
date of receipt of written notice from the Contractor that payment is requested, it 
shall provide the Contractor a letter of exception explaining the defect or objection 
to the services and outlining steps the Contractor may take to provide remedial 
action. Upon certification by the City that the services have been received and 
accepted, payment shall be tendered to the Contractor within thirty days after the 
date of acceptance. If payment is made by mail, the payment shall be deemed 
tendered on the date it is postmarked. However, the City shall not incur late 
charges, interest, or penalties for failure to make payment within the time specified 
herein. 

 
E. The payment of taxes due for any money received under this Agreement 
shall be the Contractor's sole responsibility and shall be reported under the 
Contractor's Federal and State tax identification number(s). 

 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date of signature by the 

Governing Body of the City of Rio Communities below. 
 
 

THE  CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES GOVERNING BODY 
 
 
 

_______________________ 
 

JOSHUA RAMSELL 
 

MAYOR 
 

 
 
 



3  

___________________________    ________________________ 
LAWRENCE GORDON     ARTHUR APODACA 
MAYOR PRO TEM     COUNCILOR 
 
 
 
___________________________    ________________________ 
THOMAS NELSON     MATTHEW MARQUEZ 
COUNCILOR      COOUNCILOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________    DATE:________________________ 
MARTIN MOORE, PHD 
ACTING CITY CLERK 
 

 
CONTRACTOR 

 
New Mexico Local Government Law, LLC 

 
By: Randy Autio, Owner 

 
______________________________________ 

 
DATE:_________________ 

 



4  

 





CITY OF RIO COMMUNITES 
RESOLUTION 2024-15 

 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO  

CITY OF RIO COMMUNITES 
RESOLUTION 2024-15 

 
The City Council of the City of Rio Communities ("City"), upon the report and 
recommendation of the City's Code Compliance Officer, does hereby find and determine: 

1. That a dangerous building and nuisance located at 303 Horner St., Rio Communities, 

New Mexico (hereinafter "Subject Property") has excessive debris, refuse, trash, and 

other items that constitute a safety and health hazard. 

 
2. That the debris, refuse and trash located within the Subject Property is a menace to the 

public comfort, health, safety, and wellness of the City of Rio Communities and its 

citizens. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES: 

A. The owner of the Subject Property is hereby directed to remove and properly dispose of the 
excessive debris, trash and rubbish that has been allowed to accumulate on the Subject 
Property. The owner of the Subject Property shall commence removing the excessive debris, 
trash and rubbish within ten (10) days  of being served a copy of this Resolution. 

B. If the Owner of the Subject Property fails to remove the excessive debris, refuse and trash 
from the Subject Property, the City will remove such ruins, rubbish, wreckage, or debris 
within the Subject Property at the cost and expense of the Property Owner. The cost of 
such removal shall be payable in full. Failure to pay within 30 days of billing shall result in 
a lien against the Subject Property that shall be subject to foreclosure in the manner 
provided by law. 

 
C. Should the Property Owner object to the City's removal of such burnt down building, 

rubbish, wreckage or debris within the Subject Property, the Property Owner shall file a 

written objection within ten (10) days of the posting and publishing of this Resolution to 

the City Clerk requesting a hearing upon this resolution before the City Council of the 

City of Rio Communities. 

 
D. If the Property Owner or his/her agents in charge of the Subject Property file a written 

objection with the City Council within the time frame described above, the City shall fix 

a date for hearing upon this resolution and all objections thereto presented by the 

Subject Property Owner or his/her agents and at such hearing shall determine if the 

resolution should be enforced or rescinded. 



CITY OF RIO COMMUNITES 
RESOLUTION 2024-15 

 
 

E. The City's Compliance Officer is hereby directed to serve a copy of this resolution upon 
the owners, occupants, or agents in charge of the Subject Property. In the event the 
owners, occupants, or agents in charge of the Subject Property cannot be served 
personally within the municipality, the City's Compliance Officer shall post a copy of this 
resolution upon the premise of the Subject Property and publish a copy of this 
resolution one time in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Rio 
Communities. 

 

 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF DECEMBER 2024 BY THE GOVERNING  
BODY OF THE CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES, NEW MEXICO  

 
 
 

City of Rio Communities Governing Body 
 
 

 

Joshua Ramsell, 
Mayor 

 
 

 

Arthur Apodaca, Lawrence R. Gordon, 
Councilor Councilor 
 
 

 
 

 

Matthew Marquez, Thomas Nelson, 
Councilor Councilor 

 

 
ATTEST: 

 

Martin Moore, Municipal Clerk 
   
 
 
 
 



CITY OF RIO COMMUNITES 
RESOLUTION 2024-15 

 
 

 


	Agenda CC 12.09.24.pdf
	SWS minutes 09.16.24.pdf
	SWS minutes 10.07.24.pdf
	CCSBM 10.07.24.pdf
	CC Minutes 11.12.24.pdf
	CC Minutes 11.21.24.pdf
	sharpcopier67@gmail._20241204_164257.pdf
	My Check Register 12.9.24 meeting.pdf
	Resolution 2024-13 ICIP.pdf
	CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES, NM

	Resolution 2024-14 Official Holidays.pdf
	2025 Contract Amendment.pdf
	AMENDMENT TO LEGAL        SERVICES                      CONTRACT

	sharpcopier67@gmail._20241204_163327.pdf
	Resolution 2024-15 303 Horner.pdf

